
Criminal Justice Steering Committee 
July 23, 2010 

Rhode Island Department of Corrections 
2nd Floor Conference Room 

40 Howard Avenue 
Cranston, RI  02920 

 
1. Call to Order/Welcome: 
Chairman A.T. Wall welcomed everyone and opened the meeting at 8:40 a.m.  Director 
Wall noted that was not a quorum at the present time.  Introductions were made. 
 
Present: 
A.T. Wall, Director, Rhode Island Department of Corrections, Chair (voting member) 
Deputy Gerald Coyne, R.I. Department of the Attorney General, designee of Attorney 
  General Patrick Lynch, (voting member)* 
Director Craig Stenning, MHRH (voting member)* 
Major Kenneth J. Marandola, Rhode Island State Police, designee of Colonel Brendan P. 
Doherty, (voting member) 
Ms. Marisa P. White, designee of Presiding Justice Alice Gibney, Superior Court  

(voting member) 
Ms. Lisa Holley, Esq., Rhode Island Department of Public Safety Legal Counsel 
Mr. Dennis Hilliard, Crime Lab, University of Rhode Island 
Mr. Thomas Mongeau, Public Safety Grants Administration Office 
Mr. David LeDoux, Public Safety Grants Administration Office 
 
2. Approval of June 15, 2010 Minutes: 

Because there is not a quorum present, the approval of the minutes will be deferred 
until later in the meeting, if a quorum is then present.  Ms. Hurst asked that it be 
noted in the record for voting purposes that on Page 5, the last paragraph should read:  
“provide counseling and housing counseling and assistance.” 

 
3. Discussion of Funding Options from the FY 2010 Edward Byrne Memorial 

Justice Assistance Formula Grant (JAG), David LeDoux, Public Safety Grants 
Administration Office: 
Mr. LeDoux gave the background on the National Criminal Justice Association 
(NCJA) and its role with the Public Safety Grants Administration Office as it relates 
to a technical assistance request for help with preparing a multi-year Byrne/JAG 
strategic plan.  The Law Enforcement Planning Committee (LEPC) has already met 
and has its 2010 Byrne/JAG plan ready.  However, they cannot get their money until 
the entire state plan is approved.  NCJA said the timeframe established by the 
PSGAO for Rhode Island to receive technical assistance is too short for the 2010 
solicitation.  Mr. LeDoux also provided an overview of the strategic planning process 
that was used last year, including the survey (Attachment 1 to the original of these 
minutes).  Last year there was an increase in the formula grant as well as the addition 
of stimulus money, which was combined last year in the RFP.  He also reviewed the 
programs that were funded with last year’s funds.  He stated that in the 2003  



Criminal Justice Steering Committee 
July 23, 2010 
Page 2 
 
 
Byrne/JAG strategic plan there was $50,000 in state Byrne/JAG money available for 
crime prevention activities in addition to some $50,000 in state funds; however, there 
has been no funding since 2005 when the Byrne Program became the Justice 
Assistance Grant, and funds were cut by nearly 40 percent.  He also provided an 
overview of the changes to the Byrne/JAG program as well as the state plan.  For 
2009, the PSGAO reviewed the survey taken in 2002, updated it for 2009, and sent it 
out to all Policy Board members.  A total of 23 members responded to the survey.  
Based on the results of the survey, an RFP was developed.  The decision was made to 
open up the RFP to only state agencies.  Director Wall added that there was pressure 
to get this stimulus money out quickly.  Mr. LeDoux stated that the federal 
government required transparency and accountability.  The state created the Office of 
Economic Recovery to oversee the state’s entire Stimulus Act awards.  Ms. Jamia 
McDonald was a liaison from that office to the PSGAO.  She was mostly interested in 
the process that took place to decide funding, and not the specific projects that were 
funded.  Ms. Hurst asked if applicants felt that the survey was a substitute for a 
strategic plan.  Some of the responses were topic areas, but some of them were 
projects people specifically had in mind.  Mr. LeDoux directed the committee’s 
attention to the survey of the nine program areas that were identified (Attachment 1), 
the 2010 Request for Proposals (Attachment 2), the Grant Allocations/Steering 
Committee Notes (Attachment 3), and the application (Attachment 4).   
 
Ms. Hurst asked if Byrne/JAG still has its own six program priority areas.  Mr. 
LeDoux responded that they do, but that he separated two multiple areas and 
expanded it to nine more distinct areas.  He indicated that he also went back to the old 
Byrne Grant Program that had 30 program areas and included those as possible 
projects to fund.  The PSGAO received 26 applications, and 15 were funded.  The 
Policy Board directed the PSGAO to decide which programs would be funded with 
formula funds and which would be funded with ARRA funds.  Some of the funded 
programs were specific to ARRA, such as the number of people the program would 
employ.  Independent reviewers reviewed and rated the applications, which were then 
reviewed by this committee.  The Steering Committee then had to pare back the 
requested funds, because they exceeded funds available.  Mr. LeDoux pointed out 
that the Public Defender project was originally funded by ARRA and the MHRH 
programs were funded through the formula grant, and the funding sources were 
switched. 
 
*Director Wall announced that there was now a quorum present with the addition of 
the voting members representing MHRH and the Attorney General.   



Criminal Justice Steering Committee 
July 23, 2010 
Page 3 
 

 
Approval of June 15, 2010 Minutes: 
 
Ms. Hurst moved: 
 

TO ACCEPT THE MINUTES OF THE JUNE 15, 2010 MEETING 
AS CORRECTED (see above). 

 
Director Stenning seconded the motion.  

 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY IN THE 
AFFIRMATIVE. 

 
Director Wall stated that the purpose of this meeting is to decide on the method to 
develop the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the 2010 statewide portion of the Byrne 
Grant funds.  The committee requested technical assistance if it could be provided in 
a reasonable time.  Mr. Mongeau reported that he reached out to NCJA, of which the 
PSGAO is a member. The NCJA is the liaison between the Department of Justice and 
the states.  The NCJA said that it cannot provide technical assistance is the short 
timeframe requested by the PSGAO.  However, they told Mr. Mongeau that they 
were able to find a contractor, at the University of Chicago, who could help, but the 
timeframe would be six to eight months to develop a strategic plan for Rhode Island.  
The contractor said, however, that it would be willing to look at the process used last 
year and that would take a week or so.  NCJA reminded Mr. Mongeau that a strategic 
plan not required for this funding cycle.  This committee will need to decide if it will 
use the same survey as last year or develop a new survey.  The contractor can look at 
the existing survey and provide recommendations on that. 
 
Ms. Hurst asked what level of assistance NCJA can provide.  She was told by a staff 
member that the level of assistance varies from a small amount to a great amount of 
assistance.  She asked Mr. Mongeau what Rhode Island would be likely to receive.  
Mr. Mongeau said that NCJA suggested he contact the contractor directly.  Ms. Hurst 
felt it important to request the greatest degree of cooperation they are able to provide.  
She asked if this committee could possibly provide letters of support from state 
agencies, etc. to emphasize that NCJA’s time would not be wasted and that Rhode 
Island is a good laboratory for this type of assistance, due to the size of the state and 
cooperative working relationship of all stakeholders. 
 
Director Wall stated that if this committee is agreeable, the planning process can 
begin and then seek technical assistance, as that will not affect decisions that have to 
be made today.  In addition, the staff of the PSGAO can explore further the level of 
technical assistance available to Rhode Island with the expressed interest being the  



Criminal Justice Steering Committee 
July 23, 2010 
Page 4 
 
 
highest level.  The PSGAO will ask what it would take to persuade the contractor that 
we would like the highest level possible.  Director Wall asked for a motion to that 
effect.   
 
Ms. Hurst moved: 
 

TO BEGIN THE PLANNING PROCESS AND REQUEST THE 
STAFF OF THE PSGAO TO EXPLORE FURTHER WITH THE  
NCJA CONTRACTOR THE LEVEL OF TECHNICAL 
ASSISTANCE AVAILABLE TO RHODE ISLAND WITH THE 
EXPRESSED INTEREST BEING AT THE HIGHEST LEVEL. 

 
Director Stenning seconded the motion.  Under discussion, Ms. Hurst said Rhode 
Island is a unique jurisdiction in that all the stakeholders work cooperatively, and we 
should point that out to NCJA.  She also reiterated that the Steering Committee is in 
favor of receiving the highest level of technical assistance possible and to ask what 
the Steering Committee can do to persuade them.  Director Wall called for a vote: 
 

THE VOTE WAS ALL MEMBERS VOTING UNANIMOUSLY IN 
THE AFFIRMATIVE. 
 

Since the committee cannot use technical assistance to develop a strategic plan, a 
decision is needed regarding whether to use the planning process used last year and 
then depending on that vote, whether the committee will use those funding priorities 
as well.  
 
Ms. Holley stated that this committee needs to decide whether to replicate the process 
and use the same funding priorities.  In terms of a timeframe, the Chiefs are not able 
to access their money at this point, but she understands that they do not need these 
funds immediately.  In response, Mr. LeDoux stated that some of them would spend 
the money if they had it now.  However, they fund a few statewide projects that may 
be in jeopardy, such as hate crimes training and the Attorney General’s precious 
metals database.  Both programs will have expended their funds by September.  He 
further stated that if necessary, they could use earned interest money from previous 
Byrne/JAG grants to hold them over. 
 
Ms. Hurst asked if the grant money is committed, why the programs would have to be 
halted.  Mr. LeDoux reported that it is simply a cash flow issue.  These programs are 
approved by LEPC, but they still need to be approved by the Policy Board and then 
by the Department of Justice. He said he does not expect problems with federal  



Criminal Justice Steering Committee 
July 23, 2010 
Page 5 
 
 
approval.  Ms. Hurst said that it is her understanding that as long as the money is 
committed, the Budget Office would allow the programs to continue. 
 
Ms. Holley asked if the Policy Board will vote on the Byrne funding in September.  
Mr. LeDoux replied that he believes that a new survey has to be sent out, and then 
this committee would have to meet again to discuss the results.  That would add three 
to four weeks to the planning process before an RFP could go out.  

  
Ms. Hurst asked if the committee could use last year’s results for this year.  Director 
Wall asked if the committee would use the same survey instrument and send out 
another survey, or would the committee use the results of last year’s survey.  Ms. 
Hurst stated that she would rather vote on using the same funding priorities as last 
year and how would that play out for the programs. 
 
Mr. LeDoux replied that last year there was a great deal of money, and this year the 
committee has approximately $664,000 to distribute.  The Drug Court will want level 
funding, and URI will request continuation funding.  After those two programs are 
funded there will be only $200,000 remaining to distribute.  Many of the programs 
funded last year have not spent any of their money yet.  As a result, they should not 
be asking for more money this year. 
 
Ms. Hurst suggested getting programs funded through to September 2011 and not 
June 2011.  Otherwise, the programs will be required to go through the supplemental 
budget process.  Using the state budget year is better.  She also asked if interest 
earned could carry a program from June through September, and Mr. LeDoux 
responded that it could. 
 
Major Marandola recommended using the same process and re-survey the absolute 
needs of the agencies.  Director Wall suggested awarding additional points to 
programs that are a one-time request for funds. 
 
Mr. LeDoux stated that last year 15 programs were funded; up from 3 due to stimulus 
money.  Rhode Island will not have that in the future, and we will not be able to fund 
15 programs.  The funding will have to be pared back based on a new strategic plan, 
as many of these new programs will not receive continuation funding. 
 
The two programs at the Rhode Island Municipal Police Training Academy are 
running and will have enough money to continue, and Mr. LeDoux will check on how 
long they can run.  He said that if the committee would like to consider new 
programs, there is not a lot of money for that.  In last year’s process, there were some 
programs that were one-time requests and would not need continuation funds.  He  



Criminal Justice Steering Committee 
July 23, 2010 
Page 6 
 
 
also stated that he does not see the need to re-survey.  He said the PSGAO has a good 
idea of the types of programs the committee wants to fund, because they are being 
funded now and will be for two years.  He suggested not considering new programs 
that will require continuation funding, because after a strategic plan is in place, the 
PSGAO may only be able to fund about 5 of the current 15 projects.  There will be 
not nearly enough money to continue funding all 15 projects.  The Drug Court has 
expended most of its 2009 money, but it may be able to operate until September.  
MHRH, the Attorney General, and the Department of Corrections have spent most of 
their Drug Court money.  The Public Defender has not tapped its Drug Court funds, 
because they have not been authorized the FTE. 
 
Director Wall asked if interest earned can keep the Drug Court and the Public 
Defender projects going until September 30th.  Director Wall summarized that this 
committee should not fund new projects that will require continuation funding, 
because there will not be enough money.  There is $664,568 for FY 2010.  He further 
stated that it would be better to fund infrastructure projects for one-time funding, such 
as computer upgrades, rather than service projects that require personnel and 
continuation funding.  Director Stenning recommended stating in the RFP that 
funding is only available for one-time projects exclusively.  Ms. Hurst recommended 
not framing it that way, because the state is so close to beginning to develop a 
strategic plan.  
 
Mr. LeDoux said that this would not address two projects that will need continuation 
funding after September 2010; namely, the Drug Court and the URI Crime Lab 
project.  Mr. LeDoux asked what Mr. Hilliard would need.  He said he has funds to 
carry him through September 30, 2011 and is asking for an extension to carry them 
through to December 31, 2010.  This is because the two people funded under this 
project have left the state.  They may seek to continue funding with this new 
solicitation.   
 
Director Wall summarized that there is $664,000 available.  The URI Crime Lab does 
not need money for its currently funded program.  According to Mr. LeDoux the 
Drug Court will run out of money at some point in 2010 unless it gets $380,000 from 
this RFP to carry it through to September 2011.  The Public Defender has $68,000 in 
the Drug Court for this year. 
 
Director Wall then suggested the Steering Committee ask the PSGAO to identify 
what portion of the $660,000 is essential to the continuation of the projects approved 
in the prior round and also account for interest funds.  A solicitation for the balance of 
the funds could then be for one-time only projects and state who can apply for these 



funds.  Mr. Hilliard said he has the money he needs for his current project, but he may 
apply for the balance for a one-time project.  



Criminal Justice Steering Committee 
July 23, 2010 
Page 7 
 

 
Ms. Hurst stated that the Public Defender’s Office donated services to the Drug Court 
for a year.  Director Wall said that if this committee can agree that the PSGAO 
identify those projects that will run out of funds before September 2011 and give 
them the money to continue and also use interest earned, then the balance will go out 
for one-time projects in an RFP.  He said he would entertain a motion to this effect:   
 
Deputy Coyne moved: 
 

THAT THE STAFF OF THE PSGAO BE DIRECTED TO 
EXAMINE PROJECTS FUNDED IN THE LAST ROUND TO 
DETERMINE IF ANY NEED ADDITIONAL MONEY FROM THE 
CURRENT $664,000 TO CONTINUE OPERATION UNTIL 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND HOW MUCH.  THE PSGAO IS ALSO 
AUTHORIZED TO OFFSET THESE COSTS WITH INTEREST 
MONIES IF NECESSARY.  THE BALANCE OF FUNDS 
AVAILABLE WILL THEN BE USED IN A REQUEST FOR 
PROPOSALS, WHICH WILL DIRECT THAT ONLY ONE-TIME 
PROJECTS WILL BE FUNDED WITH THE BALANCE OF THE 
$664,000. 
 

Ms. White seconded the motion.  One concern is giving a program a blank check to 
say how much money is needed without any budget discussion.  Director Wall said 
this committee could meet again to discuss the budgets and balance.  This committee 
can make that decision.  Director Wall asked how long it would take to do this.  Mr. 
LeDoux responded that it would depend on how long it would take for the Court to 
identify this.  Director Wall asked for an amendment to the motion that this 
committee will then meet again once the amount of remaining funds is identified.  
This should be before the Policy Board meeting due to take place on Friday, July 30th. 
 
Director Stenning moved: 
 

TO AMEND THE MOTION ABOVE FOR THE CRIMINAL 
JUSTICE STEERING COMMITTEE TO MEET AGAIN BEFORE 
THE POLICY BOARD’S MEETING ON JULY 30TH ONCE THE 
AMOUNT OF REMAINING FUNDS HAS BEEN IDENTIFIED.   

 
Deputy Coyne seconded the amended motion. 
 

THE AMENDED MOTION PASSED UNAIMOUSLY IN THE 
AFFIRMATIVE. 
 



Criminal Justice Steering Committee 
July 23, 2010 
Page 8 
 
 
Mr. LeDoux stated that he believes the amount available for one-time projects will be 
approximately $200,000, and there would still be earned interest available to 
program.  Director Wall stated that this committee would like to report its 
recommendations to the Policy Board at the meeting of July 30th.  This committee 
will then meet next Wednesday, July 28th at 8:30 a.m. in the same location. 
 

4. New Business:  There was none. 
 

5. Adjourn 
There being no further business, Major Marandola moved: 

 
TO ADJOURN THE MEETING. 
 

Deputy Coyne seconded the motion.   
 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY IN THE 
AFFIRMATIVE, AND THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED AT 
9:50 A.M. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      Barbara J. Laird 
      Recorder 
 
      Approved: 
 
 
 
      Thomas Mongeau 
      Administrative Manager 
 
 
 
      A.T. Wall, Director 
      R.I. Department of Corrections 
      Chair 


